## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TEXAS

Misc. Docket No. 95- 9222

# APPROVAL OF LOCAL RULES OF ADMINISTRATION OF THE COUNTY COURT AT LAW OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### **ORDERED:**

Pursuant to Rule 3a of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, the Supreme Court approves the following local rules, which have been submitted to this Court:

Local Rules of Administration of the County Court at Law of Washington County, Texas.

The approval of these rules is temporary, pending further orders of the Court.

Thomas R. Phillips, Chief Justice
Thomas R. Phillips, Chief Justice
Raul A. Gonzalez, Justice
Raul A. Gonzalez, Justice
Jack Highrower, Justice
Stattanti Stalt
Nathan L. Hecht, Justice
< oh (on
John Cornyn, Justice
Craig Enoch, Justice
Rose Great
Rose Spector, Justice
Miscella R. Owen
Priscilla R. Owen, Justice
Manu Baro
James A. Baker, Justice

## LOCAL RULES OF ADMINISTRATION

## OF THE

COUNTY COURT AT LAW

OF

WASHINGTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Effective: September 15, 1995

#### ORDER ADOPTING LOCAL RULES OF ADMINISTRATION

BE IT ORDERED by the County Court at Law of Washington County, Texas that the following Local Rules of Administration are hereby adopted under the authority of and in conformity with Section 74.093 of the Texas Government Code, Rule 3a of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 9 and 10 of the Texas Rules of Judicial Administration and the Regional Rules of Administration for the Second Administrative Judicial Region of Texas.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED these rules shall govern the administrative operation of the County Court at Law of Washington County, Texas on and after the effective date of such rules.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that these rules be delivered to the Supreme Court of Texas and to the Presiding Judge of the Second Administrative Judicial Region for consideration and approval.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that these rules shall be reproduced and copies be made available to each attorney practicing before the Court of Washington County, Texas at least 30 days prior to the Effective date hereof.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that the Local Rules of Administration of the Washington County Court at Law, shall be published on or before August 15, 1995, and shall become effective on September 15, 1995.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that this order and these rules shall be recorded in the minutes in the County Court at Law of Washington County, Texas, and that the original of this order, signed by the judge of such court shall be preserved by the County Clerk as a permanent record of this Court.

SIGNED and ENTERED this 3/ day of July, 1995.

Matthew Reue, Presiding Judge Washington County Court at Law

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## **RULE 1. GENERAL**

1.10	Time Standards for Case Disposition
1.11	Request for SettingsNon Jury
1.12	Disposition of Uncontested Matters
1.13	Jury Fee and Jury Demand
1.14	Resettings
1.15	Dismissal Docket; Involuntary Dismissal
1.16	Pre-Trial and Scheduling Conferences
1.17	Submission of Orders, Judgments and Instruments
	RULE 2. FAMILY LAW CASES
2.10	Time standards for Family Law Case Disposition
2.11	Ancillary Proceedings, Temporary Orders, and Emergency Matters
2.12	Disposition Proposals
2.13	Uncontested Matters
2.14	Financial Information Statements
2.15	Child Support Guidelines
2.16	For Kid's Sake Program
	RULE 3. CRIMINAL CASES
3.10	Misdemeanor Cases
3.11	Filing of Cases
3.12	Appearance of Defendant and Counsel/Court Attendance
3.13	Case Flow Scheduling

3.14	Time Limit on Plea Recommendation
3.15	Docket Call
3.16	Pleas
3.17	Trial Procedure
3.18	Continuance/Resetting/Postponements
3.19	Motions/Pre-trial Hearings/Pre-trial Matters
	RULE 4. ATTORNEYS OF RECORD
4.10	Conduct and Decorum of Counsel
4.11	Withdrawal of Counsel
4.12	Attorney Vacations
	<u>APPENDIX</u>
Α	Setting Request - Civil/Criminal
В	Pre Trial Docket Control Scheduling Order
С	Financial Information Statement
D	Property Division Form

e e

 $\mathcal{E}_{i} = \{i, i\}$ 

 $\epsilon$ 

#### **RULE 1. CIVIL CASES**

#### 1.10 Time Standards for Case Disposition.

The Court will, so far as reasonably possible, ensure that all civil cases, other than family law cases, are brought to trial or final disposition in conformity with the following time standards:

- a. Civil jury cases--within 18 months from appearance date.
- b. Civil non-jury cases--within 12 months from appearance date.

#### 1.11 Request for Settings--Non Jury.

#### a. Submission for Ruling Without Hearing.

Upon the filing of any matter, the movant or the Court may give notice to all attorneys of record and parties pro se that the matter will be submitted to the Court for a ruling without any hearing. The notice shall clearly state that any party may either request a hearing or submit a written response on or before a specific submission date that is at least ten (10) days after service of such statement. If no hearing is requested prior to the submission date contained in the notice, the Court, in the absence of counsel, shall examine the pleadings, authorities cited, and other papers submitted. After such examination the Court may either set the matter for a hearing or make such rulings as the court deems proper, note a memorandum of such ruling among the papers of the case and send copies of such memorandum to all attorneys of record and parties pro se. Submission of orders, judgments or other documents necessary to effectuate the memorandum ruling of the Court shall be accomplished in accordance with Rule 1.17.

#### b. Contested Hearings.

- (1) Any party or attorney of record may obtain a setting of any contested proceeding by, (a) requesting an agreed setting from the Court Coordinator, or, (b) filing a Setting Request (furnished by the Clerk, Court Coordinator, or in a form substantially similar to the form in Appendix). Each Setting Request shall be filed with the Clerk of the Court and shall specify:
  - (a) the cause number and style of the case;
  - (b) the nature of the hearing, trial or ruling sought;
- (c) the name, address and telephone number of each attorney of record or party pro se;
- (d) the amount of time estimated by the requesting party to be required for such hearing for both sides. Each attorney or party is cautioned to give careful attention to the amount of time requested, as other cases may be set at the conclusion of the estimated time period.
- (2) The attorney or party filing the setting request shall mail or deliver to all attorneys of record and all parties pro se in the case a copy of the setting request. The original setting request shall be retained with the original papers in the Court's file.
- (3) The Court Coordinator shall mail a Notice of Setting to each attorney of record and party pro se at the address shown on the Setting Request. The Notice of Setting shall state the date, hour, nature of the trial or hearing set, and the allotted time. Failure

of the requesting attorney or party pro se to accurately state the names and addresses of opposing counsel or party pro se shall be grounds for a continuance on the motion of an attorney of record or party pro se who did not receive the Notice of Setting within a reasonable time prior to the hearing date.

(4) The setting specified in the Notice of Setting shall remain tentative for a period of ten (10) calendar days after the same is mailed by the Court Coordinator. During such period, any attorney may notify the Court Coordinator of a conflict of settings or other scheduling conflict. Upon receipt of a signed certificate setting forth the nature and extent of the conflict and with the approval of the Court, the Court Coordinator may reset such cause to another tentative date or time. After the expiration of the ten (10) day period specified above, the setting shall become final.

## 1.12 Disposition of Uncontested Matters.

Requests for hearing uncontested matters and ex parte matters may be made in person, by telephone or in writing to the Court Coordinator. The Court Coordinator will set the matter for the next available uncontested docket or at any other time that may be convenient to the parties and the Court. The requesting party shall, when required by these rules or other applicable law, notify all attorneys of record or parties pro se of such setting.

#### 1.13 Jury Fee and Jury Demand.

No Civil case shall be set for a jury trial unless a jury setting request is filed and the proper jury fee is paid not later than ten (10) calendar days after the date the Notice of Setting for bench trial is mailed by the Court Coordinator.

#### 1.14 Resettings.

No setting shall be passed except by:

- a. settlement agreement announced in open court or in writing complying with Rule 11 of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure;
  - b. written agreement of all parties with court's approval; or
  - c. a motion for continuance granted by the Court.

## 1.15 Dismissal Docket; Involuntary Dismissal.

- a. At least once each year, cases which have not been disposed within the time limits set forth in these rules may be dismissed for want of prosecution. Notice of intention to dismiss shall be given in accordance with Rule 165a of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure to all attorneys of record and parties pro se whose addresses are shown on the docket or in the papers on file.
- b. If more than one case appears on the dismissal docket for a certain date, a list of cases to be dismissed shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the Clerk's office.
- c. Unless good cause is shown as required in the notice, such cases will be dismissed on or after the date stated therein. Postcard notification of the dismissal order

shall be as provided in Rule 306a of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

d. A written Motion to Retain shall be filed by any party desiring to maintain the case on the docket setting forth good cause, together with a proposed Pre-Trial Order complying with Rule 165a (1) of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

#### 1.16 Pre-Trial and Scheduling Conferences.

- a. Any party may request that the case be set for a Pre-Trial conference. A Pre-Trial conference may also be set on the Court's own motion if it appears that the case has remained inactive for 180 days and may be made a prerequisite to any trial setting in the case.
- b. At the Pre-Trial conference, the Court may hear and consider any pre-trial matter contemplated by Rule 166 of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure and such other matters as the Court may direct. The Court shall then enter a Pre-Trial Docket Control Scheduling Order.
- c. Counsel for each party will submit a proposed Charge of the Court, Witness List and List of Exhibits to the Court no later than noon on the Friday prior to the jury week for which the case is set for trial.

## 1.17 Submission of Orders, Judgments and Instruments.

a. After a ruling, the attorney directed shall prepare within ten (10) days the form of the document to be entered. On the same date the document is mailed or presented to the Court Coordinator, a duplicate of the document shall be mailed or delivered to

opposing counsel and parties pro se to provide an opportunity to approve or object to the form of the document or that the document is inconsistent with the Court's ruling (i.e., not a reargument of the merits). The document must be signed by the attorney or party pro se submitting the document.

- b. If no written objection is received by the Court Coordinator within ten (10) calendar days after the original was received, the Court Coordinator shall submit the document to the Court for signature.
- c. All objections to the form or substance of a document submitted shall have the objecting party's proposed document for the Court's signature attached. Upon receipt of objections, the Court Coordinator shall present the documents and all objections to the Court for determination. The Court may determine the issue with or without a hearing in its discretion. For good cause the Court may change the deadline for preparation and filling of a document and objections.
- d. All judgments and orders in uncontested matters (except cases which are settled on the hearing date) shall be presented at the time of hearing on such matters, except for good cause shown, and be signed by the attorney or party pro se presenting the order.
- e. If the Court Coordinator has not received a proposed judgment or order finally disposing of a case within ten (10) days after decision by the Court, the Court Coordinator shall send written notice of the lack of a proposed order to counsel. If no proposed order or judgment is received within five (5) days from the date written notice is mailed or faxed, the Court Coordinator shall present an Order of Dismissal with

prejudice to the Court and costs may be taxed in the Court's discretion.

## **RULE 2. FAMILY LAW CASES**

## 2.10 Time Standards for Family Law Case Disposition.

The court will, so far as reasonably possible, ensure that all family law and juvenile cases are brought to trial or final disposition in conformity with the following time standards.

#### a. Family Law Cases

- (1) Contested Family Law Cases. Within six (6) months from appearance date or within six (6) months from the expiration of the waiting period provided by the Family Code where such is required, whichever is later.
- (2) Uncontested Family Law Cases. Within three (3) months from appearance date or within three (3) months from the expiration of the waiting period provided by the Family Code where such is required, whichever is later.

## 2.11 Ancillary Proceedings, Temporary Orders, and Emergency Matters.

In the event a bonafide emergency exists or a matter requires special attention and the judge of the court where the case is pending is unavailable, the attorney or party seeking relief shall contact any judge who has jurisdiction and the judge can consider the matter, but the case shall remain in the court originally filed.

#### 2.12 Disposition Proposals.

a. To expedite disposition, it shall be the duty of each attorney to confer, prior to trial, with each other attorney regarding settlement, stipulations, estimated time of trial, waiver of jury, the extent, description, character and value of the property in question, amount of support, amount of monthly income, conservatorship, periods of possession and/or access, rights, duties and powers of the conservators, and contested issues.

b. Each attorney shall submit a Proposed Property Division (form furnished by the Clerk, Court Coordinator or see Appendix for form) including property claimed or recognized as separate property, to the Court and opposing counsel not later than the commencement of trial.

## 2.13 Uncontested Matters.

Requests for hearing uncontested matters and ex parte matters may be made in person, by telephone or in writing to the Court Coordinator. The Court Coordinator will set the matter for the next available uncontested docket or at any other time that may be convenient to the parties and the Court. The requesting party shall, when required by these rules or other applicable law, notify all attorneys of record or parties pro se of such setting.

Uncontested or agreed Family Law matters, where the parties waive the making of a record, may be set for 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday during the weeks not having a civil court date. You may request a setting by contacting the Court Coordinator on or before 12:00 noon on the Tuesday prior to the setting date. The criteria for the cases that will

be heard are:

- a. Uncontested with a Waiver of Citation and a making of a record, or
- b. An agreed decree, signed by both parties together with a written waiver of the making of a record.

#### 2.14 Financial Information Statements.

In all cases requiring the division of property and/or liabilities, (except in cases where Respondent signs a Waiver of Citation and does not hire counsel), the Husband and Wife EACH shall file with the Court, or upon written mutual agreement exchange between themselves, sworn inventories within seventy-five (75) days of the date that the suit is filed. The seventy-five (75) day period may be extended by the parties upon written mutual agreement of the parties and/or their attorneys filed with the Court within seventy-five (75) days of the date the suit is filed. Each inventory shall list the value of each item of property and shall list each liability, together with the total amount of the liability, the number of periodic payments in arrears, if any, the property securing its payment, and the name of the creditor. Any property or liability claimed to be separate shall be so characterized. All benefits arising from a party's employment (such as pensions, profit sharing plans, savings or thrift plans vested-unvested) shall be identified, and the last information furnished as to the employee's rights and monetary interest in such plans shall be incorporated into the inventory as an exhibit thereto.

The inventory or a summary attached thereto shall list the property values and liabilities in a columnar form with each column totaled. Each inventory shall show the

net worth of the community estate and the net worth on any claimed separate estate. All inventories shall be supplemented from the date of the original inventory through the day of the trial. When a suit is tried, three (3) copies of all inventories and supplemental inventories shall be made available for use in trial.

## 2.15 Child Support Guidelines.

The amount of child support payable by the obligor parent shall be set in accordance with the current Child Support Guidelines adopted by the Supreme Court of Texas.

#### 2.16 For Kid's Sake Program

In all divorce actions involving the custody of children, both Petitioner and Respondent shall attend the "For Kid's Sake" program at the direction of the Court prior to obtaining a setting on a final hearing.

The Petitioner will attend the first session available after the filing of the divorce action, and Respondent will attend the following session. The parties may agree to switch the dates among themselves to attend the "For Kid's Sake" program only by an agreement in writing filed with the District Clerk prior to the beginning of the first session.

Certificates of attendance for both the Petitioner and Respondent shall be filed with the Clerk prior to obtaining a setting of the final hearing.

## **RULE 3. CRIMINAL CASES**

#### 3.10 Misdemeanor Cases.

#### a. Pre-filing documents.

- (1) The County Attorney's office is responsible for maintaining custody of the following original documents until an information or indictment has been filed:
- (a) Bonds. The prosecuting attorney shall collect original bonds from the arresting agencies.
- (b) Magistrate's Warning. The completed original Magistrate's Warning will be collected from the magistrate by the prosecuting attorney immediately after completion of the warning.
- (c) Other. Miscellaneous documents relating to the defendant's case (e.g., applications for probation, letters from attorneys, etc.) will be forwarded to the County Attorney upon receipt.
- (2) Upon filing of the information or indictment, all of the above documents will be filed by the County Attorney with the County Clerk for placement in the Clerk's file.
- (3) Magistrate's warnings and bonds made after arrests in other cases where there is already on open clerk's file (e.g., arrests after motion to revoke/proceed or after capias is issued in connection with bond forfeiture) will be filed by the County Attorney with the appropriate clerk for placement in the Clerk's file.

#### 3.11 Filing of Cases.

- a. The arresting agency shall give the defendant at the time of the arrest a Notice of Arraignment (see Appendix for form) which shall have a date for the defendant to appear in court, which date is a regularly scheduled criminal docket day as it appears on the court's calendar. This date will be not less than thirty (30) but no more than forty five (45) days from the date of arrest. If the offense is Driving While Intoxicated, and a blood test was taken, then the arraignment date shall be set not less than sixty (60) days nor more than (75) days from the date of arrest.
- b. The arresting agency has fifteen (15) days from the date of the arrest to file the complaint with the case report with the County Attorney's office.
- c. The County Attorney must file the Complaint and Information with the County Clerk, if he chooses to file the case, by the thirtieth day following the date of arrest. For Driving While Intoxicated offenses with a blood test, the case must be filed by the sixtieth day following arrest.
- d. If a defendant appears on the date set out in the Notice of Arraignment, and the case has not been filed, an order will be entered releasing the bail bondsman from the bond and authorize a Personal Recognizance bond if the case is eventually filed. The defendant will be instructed that the State has not yet filed charges against him/her.
- e. The County Attorney may, upon a showing of good cause, apply for leave to file late a Complaint and Information.

## 3.12 Appearance of Defendant and Counsel/Court Attendance

Immediately upon employment, the defense attorney shall give written notice thereof to the County Attorney and the Court Coordinator stating the name of the accused, the offense(s) charged and cause number, if known. The Court Coordinator will forward the notice to the County Clerk, who will note the attorney's name on the docket sheet.

#### 3.13 Case Flow Scheduling.

Cases will be scheduled in this order, unless the interest of justice demands leeway:

- a. <u>First Setting:</u> At this Non-trial setting, attorneys can reset the case for the next court date (not less than 10 days) for MOTIONS settings-by which time all Article 28.01 motions must be <u>timely filed</u>; or, can reset case for Plea, or Trial, or MOTH, i.e., a Motion to Suppress Hearing where the Court's ruling thereon will be dispositive of the case.
  - b. Second Setting: At MOTIONS setting, Attorney would then decide to either:
    - (1) plead case; or
- (2) reset for MOTH setting, a setting where a ruling on a Motion to Suppress will be dispositive of the case. This will be set along with Bench Trials (if not dispositive of the case, it will be heard along with the trial on the merits); or
- (3) reset for PLEA, up to four (4) weeks, if plea recommendations have been reduced to writing and signed by County Attorney, defendant and his/her attorney; or

(4) reset for BENCH TRIAL/JURY TRIAL; or MTRP Hearing on regular trial docket with Jury Trial set either on a Monday or a Tuesday, and with COURT TRIALS and the MTRP Hearings and MOTH Hearings on Wednesdays and Thursdays.

#### c. Third Setting:

- (1) JURY TRIAL/FINAL PRE-TRIAL will be held at 1:30 p.m. on Civil Docket date that is not less than ten (10) days prior to JURY TRIAL setting to determine order of cases. This is the last opportunity for the defendant to plea before trial. Any pleas after this date must be before the jury; or
  - (2) PLEA, MOTH, MTRP, AND COURT TRIALS
- d. <u>Fourth Setting:</u> The Court will reset some cases for JUDGMENT and SENTENCE in straight pleas.

## 3.14 Time Limit on Plea Recommendation

If there are time limit restrictions as to Defense counsel's accepting a plea bargain recommendation from the State, such time limitation must be noted somewhere in writing and initialed by counsel for both sides.

#### 3.15 Docket Call

- a. Defendants on the first court date will have from 8:00-9:00 a.m. to talk to the County Attorney.
  - b. Docket Call begins promptly at 9:00 a.m.
  - c. After Docket is called, agreed pleas will be heard first followed by pleas without

an agreed recommendation.

- d. The Court will recess after the first pleas are heard to allow County Attorney time to work out remainder of pleas.
- e. The State must appear at all docket calls to announce "ready" or "not ready." Unless an announcement of "ready" for trial is made in writing or by phone not less than one (1) nor more than seven (7) days prior to docket call, the defendant shall appear at docket call. An announcement of ready is a representation to the Court, signed by the defense attorney and the defendant that the defendant is available for trial and has actually received notice of the setting for which the announcement is made.

#### 3.16 Pleas

- a. All pleas must be ready with a proposed judgment filled out and presented to the court at the time of the plea.
- (1) County Attorney shall have reviewed his file regarding facts, restitution and personal property damage.
- (2) Special conditions of Probation, e.g. no contact and name and addresses of the victim.
  - (3) Complaining witnesses input on assaultive cases.
- (4) Fines and Court Costs payment schedule, if any, must be fully understood and set out in the Judgment.
- (5) All supervisory fees except Theft by Check are \$40.00 per month, first payment due on the date of plea: Theft by Check supervisory fee is \$20.00 per month.

(6) If any part of plea bargain is not agreed to, then plea will be handled after the agreed pleas.

#### 3.17 Trial Procedure

- a. Trials begin or resume at 9:00 a.m. sharp.
- b. No Pre-trial matters will be heard on Trial Day unless granted leave by the Court and opposing counsel agrees to the hearing, which must be completed by 9:00 a.m.
- c. At Docket Call, counsel for State and Defense announce ready or not ready.

  Ready is a good faith ready.
- d. All counsel to rise when addressing the Court, requesting permission to approach the Court Reporter or witness, perform any demonstrations, and when passing witnesses.
- e. Counsel will not request any witness or Court Reporter to do any demonstrations or come off stand.
- f. All breaks are for the stated time and counsel for both sides are expected to be in the Court room ready to resume when the Court takes the bench.
- g. Once trial begins, the Court will attempt to work around certain witnesses' schedules; however, concern for the jurors, counsel, court personnel and court overrides any one witness's inconvenience; therefore, witnesses will be ready when court is ready and no unnecessary or avoidable delays in trial will be tolerated.
  - h. No phone calls will be made by any counsel in front of the jury. Messages will

be taken.

- i. No work or reading will be done in the courtroom by any second chair unless it pertains to case in trial.
  - j. Pre-mark all exhibits.

## 3.18 Continuance/Resetting/Postponements.

No agreement by the attorneys to continue, reset or postpone any setting shall be effective unless approved by the Court.

## 3.19 Motions/Pre-trial Hearings/Pre-trial Matters.

All Pre-trial hearings shall be conducted in accordance with Article 28.01 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.

#### **RULE 4. ATTORNEYS OF RECORD**

#### 4.10 Conduct and Decorum of Counsel.

- a. Each attorney is expected to conduct himself or herself in accordance with the State Bar of Texas Code of Professional Responsibility, the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, the Regional Rules of Administration for the Second Administrative Region, these local rules, and such other rules of conduct as may be published by the courts of this county and state. All attorneys, litigants, and witnesses shall be expected to act in a manner calculated to promote decorum, respect for the judicial system, and the prompt and fair administration of justice.
- b. In addressing the Court, attorneys shall rise and remain standing at their positions at counsel table. They shall not approach the Bench except with permission or upon request of the Court. When the Court is addressing an attorney, that attorney shall rise and remain standing until the Court finishes speaking.

Attorneys shall not lean of the Bench or appear to engage the Court in a confidential manner.

All remarks of Counsel to the Court shall be addressed to the Court and not to the Judge as an individual.

- c. Attorneys shall be responsible for advising their clients and witnesses of the formalities of the courts.
  - d. All officers of the court are expected to be prompt and prepared.
  - e. The taking of photographs, the making of video or audio recordings, or the

broadcasting of any judicial proceeding in or from any courtroom, or so close thereto as to disturb the order and decorum of the court, either while court is in session or at recess, is prohibited, unless prior permission is granted by the court.

- f. All counsel are admonished to respect the letter and spirit of all canons of ethics including particularly those dealing with discussion of cases with representatives of the press or radio and discussion of the facts or law of the case with the Court outside of the Courtroom and not in the presence of opposing counsel.
  - g. The Court shall enforce all breaches of conduct by any appropriate action.

#### 4.11 Withdrawal of Counsel.

No attorney of record shall be permitted to withdraw from any case without presenting a Motion to Withdraw and obtaining from the Court an order granting leave to withdraw. No Motion to Withdraw will be entertained by the Court unless it includes a certificate of the client's last known address. If withdrawal is without the written consent of the client, the withdrawing attorney shall forward to his client by certified mail a copy of his or her motion to withdraw and a copy of the request for setting or notice of submission without a hearing. A hearing is required in criminal cases. A copy of the motion to withdraw and request for setting or notice of submission without a hearing shall be delivered or mailed to any opposing counsel. Leave to withdraw may be denied where the motion is presented so near the trial date as to require delay of the trial. After leave is granted, the withdrawing attorney shall send the client a copy of the order granting leave to withdraw by certified mail. A copy of the order shall then be sent to

opposing counsel.

#### 4.12 Attorney Vacations.

Each attorney desiring to assure that he will not be assigned for trial during a vacation period not to exceed four (4) consecutive weeks of a given year may advise the Court Coordinator in writing not less than ninety (90) days prior to the first day of such vacation. In the event an attorney already has a setting at the time the vacation notice is filed, it shall be the attorney's responsibility to notify opposing counsel and the Court Coordinator and either file an agreed reset for approval by the Court or a motion for continuance and obtain a ruling by the Court.

	CAUSE NO
	IN THE COUNTY COURT AT LAW
VS.	OF
	WASHINGTON COUNTY, TEXAS
	SETTING REQUEST - CIVIL/CRIMINAL
TYPE OF SETTING REQUESTED:	
	RO (See Note Below) n to
Other Other	
(If opposing counsel disagrees with time within ten (10) days from date below; t	e estimated, written objections must be mailed/delivered to the Court's Coordinator time will be divided equally between counsel/parties.)
REQUESTING ATTORNEY (OR UNREF	
NAME:	
AREA CODE/TELEPHONE: ALL OTHER ATTORNEYS OF RECORD	
NAME:	(Plaintiff/Defendant/etc.)
ADDRESS:	
desired	nday commencing week): 1st choice;  ord choice, Check here if Standby Docket is also
NOTE: Uncontested divorces, adoption	ns, name changes, occupational drivers licenses, TRO or other uncontested settings is should be requested by calling the Court Coordinator.
I CERTIFY THAT A COPY OF THAT ATTORNEYS/PARTIES OF RECORD.	HIS SETTING REQUEST HAS BEEN MAILED/DELIVERED TO ALL OTHER
SIGNATURE	DATE
SATE BAR NUMBER	

Return original setting request to the County or District Clerk's Office. (Please see reverse side for addresses and telephone numbers.)

	CAUSE N	10		
			IN THE COUNT	TY COURT AT LAW
VS.			OF	
			WASHINGTON	COUNTY, TEXAS
	PRE-TRIAL DOCKET C	CONTROL SCH	DULING ORDE	:R
1joinder will provide co	_NEW PARTIES shall be ppies of this order to the r	joined and servenew parties.	ed by this date.	The party causing such
2 parties shall be design except for good caus	nated thirty (30) days after	fs shall be desig this date. No ad	nated by this da ditional experts	ate. Experts for all other will be permitted to testify
uncontested issues ar are in reality not con- reasonableness of me	_INFORMAL PRE-TRIAL And facts to prevent unnecestested but yet not conceededical services, the genuit, wage rates, and other use.)	essary time and d ded will be reso neness of docui	cost of discovery lived. Examples ments, the issue	<ul> <li>Issues and facts which include the amount and is of agency, course and</li> </ul>
	DISCOVERY shall be comes deadline not to exceed by the trial date.			
5referred to Mediation	ALTERNATE DISPUTE R	RESOLUTION Upon or before this	on the Court's date.	own motion the case is
	AMENDMENTS Plaintiff's pleadings filed within ter			
7notice of this order.	JOINT PRE-TRIAL ORDE	R shall be filed b	by the date in th	e form enclosed with the
8	PRE-TRIAL CONFERENC	E will be held. T trial.	rial counsel are	ordered to attend and be
9date, the trial date wil	TRIAL IS SET FOR THIS I	DATE. If the case	is not tried by th	ne second Friday after this
	Signed this the	day of		, 1995.
		Judge Presidin	g	·
Copies sent to:				

pretrialdocket/schedulingorder

## IN THE COUNTY COURT AT LAW OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTICE: This form is to be completed and a copy furnished to opposing Counsel and Court prior to the show cause hearing and/or hearing on the merits. All columns must be totaled.

#### FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

	CAUSE NO.		
Petition	ner	Respondent	
Attorne	ey for Petitioner	Attorney for Respon	ndent
1.	Date of Marriage		
2.	Ages of children of this marriage:		
3. (a)			
` ,	House Payment/rent	SUBTOTAL FORWA	ARD \$
	Utilities including telephone		
	Food	Cleaning and laund	Iry
	Doctor/Dentist/Drugs	Legal Fees	
	Insurance Premiums	Gifts	
	Car Payments	Church Support	
	Gasoline/oil/parking/bus fares	Entertainment Activ	
		Lessons for childre	n
	Childcare/school tuition	Miscellaneous	
	Lunches/school supplies		
	Haircuts (+)		_ (+)
	SUBTOTAL (\$)	GRAND TOTAL	Ψ
(B)	Debts (other than house & car)		
		OTAL \$	(+)
GRAN	، DTOTAL (Monthly expenses and debts) (3 <i>A</i>	Λ & 3B)	
G1 0 11 11	2.017.12 (	,	
4.	Are you working: (Yes) (No) k Name of Employer:		
5.	I am Paid: () weekly, () every two weekly will get my next check	eks, () twice a month, () once a	month
6.	Gross Income (If available, attach last thr	ee pay stubs):	
	,	EACH PAY PERIOD \$	MONTHLY \$
Deduc	tions: Withholding tax \$		
	FICA \$		
	Retirement \$		
	<u> </u>		
	\$		
	DEDUCTIONS \$	(-)	(-)
NET II	NCOME	(\$)	(\$)

	Other income (Yes) (N	.o, _q		£ t	
8.	Have you received an	y overtime i	pay in the las	t 12 months? (Yes) (No)	
9.	Quick assets: I have of				
	\$cash	\$		banks	
	\$credit	unions \$		undeposited checks	savings & loan
	\$Stock	s & Bonds \$		other	associations
	I can borrow \$	on n	ny signature.		
10.		•		Vork:	
11.	My spouse is paid: (	) weekly. (	) every two v	veeks, () twice a month,	() once a month
	My spouse's paychec	k is received	ĺ		
	My spouse's hourly ra	ate of pay is	\$		
12.	Gross Income (if avail	lable, attach	spouse's las		
				Each Pay Period	
				\$	\$
	Deductions:	\$		•	
	Withholding Tax	\$			
	FIÇA	\$			
	Retirement	\$			
		_ +			()
	TOTAL DEDUCTIONS			(-)	_ (-)
	NET INCOME		=		
13.	Other Income Spou	se: (Yes) (I	10) Explain_		
14.	Hee your apoutes room	aived ony ov	ortimo in the	last 12 months? (Yes) (N	o)
15.	Quick assets: My spo	nise has co	ntrol of	12 110 11 10 . (100) (10	<b>~</b> ,
15.	\$cash	\$ 3036 mas		hanks \$	savings & loan
	\$ cradit	· unions \$		undeposited checks	association
	\$stock	s & bonds \$		other	
	Ψσισσικ	5 5t 15 5t 15 5	1,0108		
	My spouse can borro	w \$	by si	gnature.	
16.	Custody of the children	nisatpresent	asfollows:		
	<i>i</i>	•			
17.				s are reasonable necessar	y or within the ability of
my hus	sband to pay, and that	it will be fair	r and equitab	le to require the following:	
				EACH PAY PERI	OD MONTHLY
	a. For temporary spo	usal support	Ι	\$	
	b. For child support			(+)	(+)
18.	Total lines 17a and 17	7b		\$	_ \$
19.	Wife's Net Income			(+)	
20.	Total Lines 18 and 19			\$	
21.	Husband's Net Incom			(+)	
22.	Less spousal and chi			(-) <u> </u>	(-)
23.	Net husband after de		hild support	&	Φ.
	temporary spousal su	ipport		\$	φ
24.		HUSBAND)	i teel that a i	easonable sum for me to	pay weekly of monthly
would	be:			EACH PAY PERI	OD MONTHLY
	ر سیاد			<b>A</b>	•
	a. For temporary spo	ousai suppo	rt.	\$	
				(+)	
05	b. For child support	4h		Œ	N N
25.	b. For child support Total lines 24a and 2	4b		\$	\$
25.		4b		\$	
25.		4b		\$	\$
25. DATE:	Total lines 24a and 2	4b		\$	\$

## (PETITIONER/RESPONDENT) SUGGESTED DIVISION OF COMMUNITY PROPERTY

	1 ===	2 3 3 3	5 5 6	== ; ==== 8 ===	910
Assets	Cost or Tax Basis	Fair Market Value Debt			
Assets	Tax Basis	Value Debt	Net Equity	Property to Husband	Property to Wife
	<del></del>	<del>                                     </del>	<del>                                     </del>		
ASH	<del></del>	#	<del>                                     </del>	<del> </del>	
. Acct. #	N/A	N/A: S		<del>"</del>	\$
. Acct. #	N/A	N/A S	<u> </u>	<del></del>	\$
3. Acct. #	N/A	N/A !S!		i\$	Ş
1. Acet. #	N/A	N/A S	<u> </u>	<del>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </del>	\$
. Acct. #	NYA	N/A S	same		\$
STOCKS/BONDS/SECURITIES					
. shares of					
(NAME OF COMPANY)	is	\$	S .		\$
. shares of .		1 1			
(NAME OF COMPANY)	ıs	s s	4	s	s
<del></del>					
(NAME OF COMPANY)	s	s		s	s
ARTHERSHIP INTERESTS,					
USINESS INTERESTS, OPTIONS		# 1 - 1 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1			
···	s	s s	s	s	s
······································	s	\$ 5	<del> </del>	·	s
· ·	\$	\$ 5			si i
<u> </u>		1 4 THE PARTY OF T	<del> </del>		
·	S	\$ \$	S S	S	\$
			╟╾╀┊┼┷┊┼┈╟╌╂╌┼╌┼╌┼╌┼		<del></del>
OTES, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE,	<del>-                                      </del>	#	<del>╣╸╽┊╎╸┆╶╢╸╽┊┞╸┤╸╠╶╎╸┆╸</del> ┼	<del></del>	<del></del>
<del></del>				<del>└─┴──┴──┴──┃</del>	
LAIMS, BENEFICIAL INTERESTS N ESTATES AND TRUSTS	<del>-                  </del>	++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	<del>╽╸╏┊╏┋╏╶╫╺╏┊╏╧┆</del> ╁╼╫╶╁ <del>┊╏</del> ╧┼	<del>-                              </del>	<del></del>
N ESTATES AND TRUSTS	<del>-                                      </del>				<del></del>
• •	\$	\$			ş
•	\$	\$ \$			\$
·	\$	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$

Accate	Cost Tax B		Fair Market Value	_ ,		Net Equity		Property to	. Unabana		
Assets REAL ESTATE	1dx B	asis	Value	Debt	11 1	Net Equity		1,11	Husband	Property	to Wir
	+++				+		<del>-   -   -   -  </del>	<del>├</del> ┼┼┤┼┼┼	<del>-{-}-{-}</del> -	<del>┞╶╏</del> ┼┼┼┼┼	<del>                                     </del>
			<del>╎┤┊┤</del> ╌╌╴				┝╼╂╁┊╋╅╪╂╼┨	l	+++++	<del> -  -  - </del>	<del>                                     </del>
!	\$		- <del> </del>	\$		<del></del>	- <del></del>	\$	<del>                                      </del>	\$	
2.	\$		<del>    </del>	\$		ş		\$	1.1-1-1-1	ş	1-1-1-1
3.	\$	- 1-		\$		\$		\$	1111	\$	بلللل
4	ş		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ş <u> </u>		\$		\$	1:11:11	s :	1111
5.	\$		\$	ş		\$		\$		ş	
RETIREMENT PLANS, EMPLOYEE											
BENEFITS, IRA/KEOGH				· ·           ·   ·   ·		1 - 1 - 1					
1.	\$		\$	ş		\$		\$		s	
2.	ş		<del> </del> -	s		\$		\$	1	s	
3.	\$			ş	1 1	\$		s		s	
4.	\$		( <del>-                                   </del>	s		s		ş	17:17:17	s	
<del></del>				<b>'</b> i-i-		*				· ·	
LIFE INSURANCE	Fac	e.	Loans	csv		Equity					
1. Policy #	s		\$	s		\$		\$ !	1! 1 ! 1	\$	
2. Policy #	s		\$	ş		s		ş		s	
3. Policy #	\$			s		ş		s		s	
4. Policy #	\$			\$		\$		s		\$	
JEWELRY, AUTOMOBILES, AND				- <del>- </del> - -							<u> </u>
PERSONAL EFFECTS											
1	ş	++	s	s		s		s	111111	s	
2.	ş			s		s		\$	1111111	\$	
3.	\$			s	<del></del>	s		\$		\$	
4	\$			\$		\$	- <del> </del>	s	╅┰╂	\$	<del>,   ;   ;</del>
				<b>?</b>		<del> </del>	<del>   </del>	\$	1	\$	<del>-         -</del>
5.	\$ \$	+		·	+	\$			++++++++	\$	
6		1	\$	\$	-11-1	\$	<del>- -  </del>	\$	+++++	3	<del></del>
	-							<del>-                                      </del>	1111111		<del></del>
1	<b> </b>	-	1 1 1 1 1 1 1		34 34 4		- 111111		411414		}

Appendix D

		<u> </u>	=			2		<u> </u>		===	4 =			5 🚍			6 =			7 ==			8 =			<u> </u>			=	ıo=
_			or			Mark	et					1.		Equi				l li						_		_		ĺ		
Assets	Ta	X B	asis	-	va	lue		Debt	<del></del>	T	T	T   '	iet	Equi	EY	T i	1:1		Pr	opert	y Itc	Hu	Sbar	nd	一		erty	/ Ito	Wif	٩
WALLES THE THE TANK T	+					<del> </del>			+ -		<del> </del>								<del>- </del>	+-+		1 ::	H	+	-+-	4		-	441	Н
HOUSEHOLD FURNISHINGS	\$				\$		_;	\$	<del></del>				-	+-	<del>                                     </del>		<del>  -</del>	-	ş	1111	-∦-		44	1	\$	- 1	-	4	44	11
	-			- -		<del> </del>			1-1-		<b> </b> -	1-4	-		<del>  - ∦</del> -	+-	1		-	114		┞-	111	-	4	+	-	4-1	$\coprod$	Н
TOTAL	\$				\$	<del> </del>	<del></del>	\$	+ -	_	ļ	.   9	-	-	₩.		<del>- </del>	<u> </u>	\$	<del> </del>	#-	ļ:	!!		ş			#-#		الما
	<del>    </del>			4	-	-	-+		<del>: !</del>	-	-	₩.	-	<del></del>	1-4	<del> </del> -	<del>                                     </del>			$\perp$	-	<u> </u>	Ш		_	1		#	111	_!
	44			_	J	ļ	<u>.</u>		1 4		ļ	. ∥.		.	L.I.		.		ļ	1:1		ļ <u>.</u>	111	. _#					<u>'</u>	Ш
Liabilities	<u>.    .  </u>			. 4		1		Amount	1 1			1		.	<u> </u>		ļ			1_1				$\perp \perp \parallel$			1,1	11	Ш	Ш
				.					14			1.4		.			1			11	1.	<u>                                     </u>		1		_			- 11	Ш
1.	11			_  _	⊥	1		ş	Ш.		ļ	↓.↓.	.		Щ.			Щ.		<u>L: .</u> ].		١,	11				1	ş		
2				1		$\perp$ $\perp$	$\rightarrow$	\$			<u> </u>	$\perp \downarrow$		<u> </u>		<u> </u>			Ш.	1.	\$		1		$\perp$			\$		
3	11					]		\$		1	l		1.	.		<u>                                     </u>			1	.	\$		: 1		$\perp$	$\perp$		\$		
4	$\perp$				1			\$	1												\$		1		T			\$	1	
5						1	į	\$	1 1		]				IT				7		Ş		1.		7	T		\$		П
· Boung .	TΤ			T	T		T		TT	7						1			T-		1 -			П			1			П
	1-1	;		T	7	7- 1	T	\$	IT	T	1	1 1	1				7		-	1. 1	\$		1		- [-			\$	TII	$\Box$
							j			1			T-	-						T	T	:			丁	Т	$\top$		; ;	T
	11.			-		7- ''i	Ť		1 1	1		1-1	† ··-		1 1		1	-	1-	1	-	-	1	17	7-		71			11
Recapitulation	†- i-			1			1		1::1-	1	† : : :	1 1			1	†	1	-  -	1 :	1:	1		-	†− <b> </b> †	十	7	-	1-1	1.1	Ti
accept set et et	††			-	<del></del>	1	Ť			1		†			<del>  </del>					1		·;	1:1	1 -#	-	1	1	$\dagger \dagger$	$\Box$	-
TOTAL ASSETS				$\top$	-		寸	S	1 1	1		1-#	-		+	-	-		- +		\$			1 - 1	- -			Ş	$\Box$	П
	11		$\neg$	1	1	1	T	Т	++	1.		Ħ	+	$\top$	11		+-	Ti-	<del></del>	<del> </del>	╅		11	11	$\top$	$\overline{}$	$\pm$	+ +	Ш	T
TOTAL LIABILITIES	#+			-	+	1-1		s	1-1	1	†·	#-	+-	+	1-#-	+	+	1	<del> </del>	<del>  </del>	\$		Ti	<del>                                     </del>	+			\$		+
	$\mathbf{H}$			+	+	† <del>-</del>	-†	<del> </del>	T	+-	<del> </del>	-			+	+			· <del> </del>	<del>                                     </del>	·   *		1.1	+	+		1	17	Ħ	1.1
NET WORTH	$\dagger \dagger$				<del> </del> -	+		\$	1-7.			┼…∦・		1-1-1		-				1	\$		111	+†	+	<del></del>	#	\$	${}^{\dag \dag}$	++
NET WORTH	+			+		<del> </del> -	+		++	+:			-		<del>   -</del>		1	-		<del>                                     </del>	+3	++	H	+-#	+	-#	╁┼╴	1 3	++	+
	+			+	+	+	+	<del>-                                    </del>	++	+			+	+		+			+	++++	╁		Н	╁╼╫╴	+	$\div$	+	+	$^{++}$	+
PERCENTAGE	++	🕂				<del> </del>		<del></del>				<b>├  </b> ·	+		├ - ╬	- <del>  -   -</del>	<del> -</del>	-#-	-	+	╬	H	H		+-		╬	+	╁┼╂	+
FERCENIAGE	#-+				+	<del> </del>	· - <del> </del> -		<del>  -   -</del>	++	+++	<del> </del> #	+- :	+,	<del> </del> <del>  </del> -	+-	+			++	-#	1	H	+*	+	++	++-	++	┼┼┤	₩
	#-+			-#-	+ +	+			+		++	₩-		1+:	<del>   -</del>				++	++++	-#	₩	╁┼┼	╁╌╫	+:	++	+	+	+++	+
	##	+		- #-	+	<del> </del>	-4				$\forall$			+	<del> </del> #-		┥┯┼┥			+	-	Н.	++	<del> </del> ∦-	- -			#-+	+++	+
	++		+++	-#			+	!	1 1	41	111	+	11	+		44-	111	-	1::	1111		1	Ш	+	- 1	Ш	+	+	Ш	#
<u></u>		_:_				<u> </u>	i		1 1		111		1:1	111		] !	1.11	- 1					Ш			: 11			H	

Appendix D



#### THE SUPREME COURT OF TEXAS

CHIEF IUSTICE

POST OFFICE BOX 12248

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78711

CLERK JOHN T. ADAMS

THOMAS R. PHILLIPS

TEL: (512) 463-1312

EXECUTIVE ASS'T. WILLIAM L. WILLIS

**IUSTICES** RAUL A. GONZALEZ JACK HIGHTOWER NATHAN L. HECHT IOHN CORNYN CRAIG ENOCH ROSE SPECTOR PRISCILLA R. OWEN

JAMES A. BAKER

FAX: (512) 463-1365

ADMINISTRATIVE ASS'T. NADINE SCHNEIDER

October 13, 1995

Hon. Matthew A. Reue County Court at Law 105 E. Main, Suite 203 Brenham, Texas 77833

Dear Judge Reue,

Please find enclosed, a copy of the order of the Supreme Court that approved local rules of administration for your Court.

Sincerely,

#### SIGNED

John T. Adams Clerk

Encl.

cc: Hon. Thomas J. Stovall, Jr. 3nd Admin Judicial Rgn

> Hon. H. R. Towslee Administrative Judge

District Clerk

County Clerk

Supreme Court Adv Committee

Mr. Jerry Benedict Office of Court Admin

State Law Library